
REGIONAL HEALTH INFORMATION EXCHANGE PROJECTS 

Questions and Responses

Q1.
If two or more organizations are collaborating on this project, can the prior experience of all the collaborators be included in the proposal, or will you only accept the experience of the organization acting as the prime? 

R1.
Yes, please include the experience of the total organizations collaborating.
Q2.
Is the ultimate goal for the Resource Center to be self-sustaining after the initial 18-month period?  Is MDCH planning to extend funding beyond the initial 18-month period?  

R2.
As stated in the Statement of Work, Section II, Sub B, 6, “The Resource Center will develop a plan for sustainable funding and actively seek funds for this purpose.”  MDCH is only committing funding in this RFP for the initial 18-month period.
Q3.
We are interested in submitting a Planning Grant proposal.  Section III (A) (2) (i) Statement of Work delineates a series of deliverables.  Is it correct that these deliverables are for the result of the planning process, not the deliverables to be included in the grant submission proposal?

R3. 
Yes, these are deliverables that will result from the planning process.  However, the work plan and timeline must meet all of the objectives of the project as identified in the Statement of work as defined in section IV, subsection C, 1 of the RFP.

Q4.
When is it anticipated that the awards will be given?

R4.
The anticipated award is 4/1/07.
Q5.
Section IV describes the budget detail/summary for an 18-month period.  Must the plan extend that far out?  Could the planning process be budgeted for 10 months, for example?  If so, must the budget show estimated costs for the remaining months for some other activity or can those remaining months be 0?   A concern is that the planning may be complete in 10 months, but the next-step (implementation for example) costs are simply unknown until the planning is complete.

R5.
Funding is available for 18-months for the planning grant, however an applicant may chose to write the grant for a shortened timeframe and funding will correspond accordingly.

Q6.
Section III (A) (v) lists examples of stakeholders.  Is there some minimum set/type of stakeholders required in order to receive a grant at this point?

R6.
The applicant must engage a diverse set of community and regional stakeholders.  However, since the make-up of each MTA is unique, there is no set requirements for involvement

Q7.
Section III (A) (1) (i) indicates that the submitting organization be “an existing formal or incorporated organization based in Michigan.”   Must this organization be chartered as a RHIE?  If we wish to form a new organization (as a RHIE), is it acceptable that the organization be newly formed (for example in January, 2007)?

R7.
No, the submitting organization does not need to be chartered as an RHIE.  A newly established legal entity is acceptable.

Q8.
While both categories (Planning and Implementation) are applicable, we are aware that an applicant can only apply for one of two grant categories.  If however, the grant review team believes our plan is more appropriate for the grant category we did not apply under, will they consider us for that category or deny us completely?

R8.
The criteria for planning and implementation grants are clearly defined in the RFP.  If the applicant does not meet the criteria for the grant for which they have applied they will be denied.

Q9.
Are not-for-profit entities equally eligible to apply or is their preference given to one particular tax-status? 

R9.
Not-for-profits entitities are equally eligible to apply for this award.  Preference will not be given to one particular tax-status.

Q10.
The Implementation Grant requires the applicant describe a feasibility plan for implementation and sustainability that includes “measurable outcomes.” Could you provide examples of measurable outcomes that are considered appropriate?

R10.
Please see the MiHIN Conduit to Care report for examples of measurable outcomes.  The MiHIN report is available at www.michigan.gov/mihin.

Q11.
The RFP highlights recommended phases for regional HIEs to include their design.  One phase encourages the empowering of MI citizens through the creation of portable PHRs.  As an implementation grant applicant, we currently are not implementing this, but plan to in the future.  Does this demonstrate our commitment or do you require substantive technical plans to be described in the grant application?

R11. 
No, technical plans do not need to be submitted.  Commitment to implement in the future and a thorough explanation of how this phase fits into future plans is sufficient.  

Q12.
We are required to utilize the MTA analysis in designing our implementation plan across our geographic region.  Is there a specific report that outlines MTA data results for each MTA region that we can access?  If not, what type of MTA analysis do you require?

R12.
Please visit www.michigan.gov/mihin for a complete MTA analysis.

Q13.
Section III (A) (1) (vi) says “applicant must engage the commitment of health care purchasers and/or payers representing in total, a critical mass (approximately 60%) of the covered lives in the geographic area of the regional HIE.”  What does “engage the commitment” mean specifically?  Are letters of support (referenced in Section IV (F) sufficient to meet this requirement?  Is it sufficient that the “critical mass” be reached through a sufficiently large group of health care providers (health care delivery systems, community hospitals, etc) as opposed to purchasers/payers?

R13.
Letters of support that detail how each stakeholder will support the Regional HIE are sufficient proof of engaging the commitment of stakeholders.  The critical mass must include purchasers/payers as well as providers.

Q14.
Section IV contains the list of items required to be included in the proposal. However, Section IV (J) seems to simply identify the reporting structure/methodology to be used if the grant is awarded.  In order to meet the requirement of Section IV (J) is it sufficient to simply acknowledge that we accept this requirement?

R14.
Yes, the purpose is to acknowledge that the applicant accepts the requirement.

Q15.
On page 1, section I. D, which states, “An award will be made to the applicants who most successfully meets the criteria of the RFP.  MDCH intends to fund planning projects and implementation projects, both for a period of up to 18 months.   Each applicant will only be eligible for one type of grant:  planning or implementation”:  When does the State expect that funds will be available?

R15.
The anticipated award date is 4/1/07.

Q16.
On page 1, section I. F, which states “All proposals must be received by MDCH/Contracting Management Section by February 12, 2007, at 2:00 p.m. EST.”  Will the State consider an extension due to the holidays?

R16.
There are no plans for an extension on the due date for the proposals.  The State holidays were taken into consideration when the deadlines were established.

Q17.
On page 4, section III. A 1. iii, which states, “The applicant must plan the geographic operation to be based on the Michigan Medical Trading Area (MTA) Analysis.  A statewide Medical Trading Area Analysis can be found at www.michigan.gov/mihin.  It is strongly encouraged that there is only one HIE per MTA.  Accordingly, interested organizations within MTAs are encouraged to work together.”  Can an HIE cover more than one MTA or include portions of multiple MTAs?

R17.
Yes, if all stakeholders in the multiple MTAs support the proposal.
Q18.
On page 4, section III.A 1.v, which states, “The applicant must plan to engage a diverse set of community and regional stakeholders.  The kinds of stakeholders would include but not be limited to: practicing clinicians, hospitals, laboratories, health plans, major employers, local and state government offices, public health, patient groups, purchasers, quality improvement organizations, hospital associations, and medical societies.”

Q18a.
Is this list prescriptive, meaning that each listed stakeholder type must be represented?


R18a.
No. However, applicants must plan to engage a diverse set of stakeholders in the Medical Trading Area.

Q18b.
How does the State differentiate between employers and purchasers?

R18b.
Employers in a community can include those that supply health care for their employees and those that do not.  Purchasers can be employers, individuals and insurers.
Q19.
On page 5, section III.A.1.vii which states “The applicant must engage the commitment of a significant percentage of practicing clinicians to utilize the HIE capabilities in the project.  The significant percentage must include clinicians not predominantly within one organizational structure or system”.  

Q19A.
Does this criteria need to have been met prior to the application or is it the intention of the State to accept a plan to engage the physician community?


R19A.
The intent is to accept a plan to engage the physician community.

Q19B.
If letters of commitment by practicing clinicians are required to be included with the RFP response – can Medical Societies and Physician Organizations serve as proxies for individual physicians?


R19B.
Letters from local Medical Societies and Physician Organizations within a Medical Trading Area are acceptable.

Q20.
On page 5, section III.A.2.i.1 which states “The plan should, at a minimum, detail: a formal governance structure”.  Does the State have any preferences in regards to governance structure?

R20.
No, however, the governance body should be representative of the stakeholder community in the Medical Trading Area.

Q21.
On page 6, section III.A.2.v which state “Regional HIEs must work and comply with the requests, decisions, and guidelines issued by the Statewide HIE Resource Center”:

Q21A.
Will examples of typical requests, decisions, and guidelines issued by the Statewide HIE Resource Center be available, since it does not yet exist?

R21A.
No, however, please refer to the MiHIN Conduit to Care Report available at www.michigan.gov and the Resource Center RFP for examples of duties of the Resource Center.

Q21B.
Sharing lessons learned across the State is clearly beneficial, should proposals include staff time to interface with the HIE Resource Center?

R21B.
Yes.

Q21C.
Will regional HIEs have the ability to influence HIE Resource Center decisions/guidelines?

R21C.
Yes, please refer to the MiHIN Conduit to Care Report available at www.michigan.gov and the Resource Center RFP for examples of duties of the Resource Center.

Q22.
In Section III- Eligibility Criteria and Statement of Work, Part A - Planning Grant, Item 1.viii should the statement "The applicant must be planning an HIE that is open to the entire community” be interpreted in the present or future tense?  That is to say; must this planning be already underway, or may it be undertaken by the applicant if the grant is awarded?
R22.
Yes, this is in the future tense.  The applicant must be planning an HIE that is open to the entire community.
Q23.
May a respondent to this RFP apply for participation (either for a Planning Grant or for an Implementation Grant) in more than one Michigan Medical Trading Area (MTA)?  
R23.
If the respondent has the support and commitment from the stakeholder community in the entire MTA or MTAs, then a respondent may participate in more than one MTA.

Q24.
May a respondent apply for a Planning Grant in one or more MTAs and apply for an Implementation Grant in other MTAs?
R24.
Each applicant will only be eligible for one type of grant – planning or implementation.   If the applicant has the support and commitment from the stakeholder community in the entire MTA or MTAs, then an applicant would be eligible to submit an application in more than one MTA.

Q25.
We would like clarification about the requirement listed on the top of page 5 which says "must engage the commitment of healthcare purchasers and/or payers representing in total, a critical mass (approximately 60%) of the covered lives in the geographic area of the regional HIE."  The discussion during the MiHIN project focused almost completely on proportion of service providers and physicians required to build and maintain the Phase A digital results and other clinical information communication.  Can we assume that participation of service providers, which represent 60% or more of the Clinical Services and reflected in the Medical Trading Area Analysis done with Medicaid and Blue Cross, Blue Shield Beneficiaries would be appropriate for Phase A and that the requirement stated on page 5 would be pertain to Phase B? 

R25.
No, the requirement in Section III, Subsection A, vi, applies to all phases of an HIE.  

Q26.
Can we plan to use only a section of the MTA or do we need to work with the entire area defined in the MTA analysis supplied on the MiHIN website?

R26.
It is strongly encouraged that there is only one HIE per MTA.  As such, planning or implementation projects should include the entire MTA.  Applications that only include parts or subsections of an MTA will not be favored.
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